
Legal & Governance Reform
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
HeadHead  ofof  LegalLegal  andand  GovernanceGovernance  ReformReform

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub Committee

Enquiries to: Michael Garraway
Telephone: 01706 924716
Date: Monday, 19 October 2015

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Rochdale Township Planning Sub 
Committee to be held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Tuesday, 27 October 2015 
commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

Viewing agenda:
3.45 Meet at Town Hall 
4.00 Healey Surgery, Whitworth Road
4.15 Land at Rudman Street

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of Interest 
which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the Code of Conduct or 
contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputies or staff in the Governance and Committee 
Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Head of Legal and Governance Reform

Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee Membership 2015/16
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Lynne Brosnan
Councillor Ian Duckworth
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Terry Linden
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler



Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 27 October 2015 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 4 - 17

- Top consider the minutes of the meetings of the Rochdale 
Township Planning Sub-Committee held on 7th July, 4th 
August, 1st September and 29th September 2015.

3.  Submitted Planning Applications 18 - 61

4.  Planning Appeals 



Planning Appeals

i) Notification that the following appeals have been 
lodged:

 15/00145/FUL  - 571/573 Bury Road - Erection of a single 
storey dwellinghouse (Part Retrospective)

ii) Notification that the following appeals have been 
dismissed:

 14/0506/EUD – Land adjacent 99 Shaw Road  - 
Appeal against Enforcement Notice

 15/00530/HOUS – 13 Bittern Close - Two storey and 
single storey rear extension, two storey and single 
storey side extension and front porch - Alternative 
proposal to 15/00519/HOUS

 15/00122/ADV – Free standing advertisement 
hoarding adjacent to gable wall of 333-335 Manchester 
Road

 15/00123/ADV - Erection of advertisement hoarding to 
gable elevation of 333-335 Manchester Road

iii)    Notification that the following appeals have been allowed: 

None 





DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 7 July 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Lynne Brosnan (Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Shakil Ahmed, Duckworth, James Gartside, Linden, O'Neill, Rashid and Wazir

OFFICERS:  R. Coley and L. Houghton (Economy & Environment Service) and M. 
Garraway (Customers & Corporate Service)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor A. Ahmed; 16 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Sheerin

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
14 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
15 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meetings of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee meetings held on 1st June and 18th June 2015 be 
approved as correct records.

ALTERATIONS TO AND REFURBISHMENT OF EXISTING PUB INCLUDING 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING SIDE AND REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSIONS 
WITH ERECTION OF NEW PART SINGLE STOREY AND PART TWO STOREY 
SIDE EXTENSION AND TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION TO FORM NEW BAR / 
RESTAURANT AT THE BIRD ITH HAND  239 BURY AND ROCHDALE OLD 
ROAD, HEYWOOD
16 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 15/00158 for alterations to, and the refurbishment of, an existing pub 
including demolition of existing side and rear single storey extensions, with the 
erection of new part single storey and part two storey side extension and two storey 
rear extension to form a new bar / restaurant at the Bird Ith Hand, 239 Bury And 
Rochdale Old Road, Heywood

In introducing the report the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken by 
Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Deardon, who addressed the Sub-
Committee objecting to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee would be minded to approve the application subject to 
conditions as detailed within the submitted report. 

VARIATION OF CONDITION APPLICATION FOLLOWING PLANNING 
PERMISSION 09/D51971 TO ALLOW: CONDITION 2- THE PREMISES SHALL 
NOT OPEN FOR TRADE OR BUSINESS BEFORE THE HOURS OF 07:00 HOURS 
TO 19:00 MONDAY TO FRIDAY , 08:00 HOURS TO 14:00 HRS ON SATURDAYS 
AND NOT AT ALL ON SUNDAYS AND BANK HOLIDAYS. CONDITION 3- ALL 
MACHINERY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO BETWEEN 



THE HOURS OF 07:00 HOURS TO 19:00 MONDAY TO FRIDAY , 08:00 HOURS 
TO 14:00 HRS ON SATURDAYS AND NOT AT ALL ON SUNDAYS AND BANK 
HOLIDAYS, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE BOILER WHICH MAY OPERATE 
FROM 06:00 HOURS MONDAY TO SATURDAY. CONDITION 4- NO HEAVY 
GOODS VEHICLES OR COMMERCIAL SHALL ACCESS THE SITE OUTSIDE THE 
HOURS OF  09:00 HOURS TO 17:00 MONDAY TO FRIDAY , AND AT NO TIMES 
ON SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS OR BANK HOLIDAYS AT JAPE ONE BUSINESS 
CENTRE, 2 TURNPIKE CLOSE, ROCHDALE
17 The Director of Economy and Environment Service introduced submitted 
planning application 15/00272 for the variation of condition application following 
planning permission 09/D51971 to allow: Condition 2- The premises shall not open 
for trade or business before the hours of 07:00 hours to 19:00 Monday to Friday, 
08:00 hours to 14:00 hrs on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
Condition 3- All Machinery, plant and equipment shall be restricted to between the 
hours of 07:00 hours to 19:00 Monday to Friday , 08:00 hours to 14:00 hrs on 
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays, with the exception of the 
Boiler which may operate from 06:00 hours Monday to Saturday. Condition 4- No 
Heavy Goods Vehicles or commercial shall access the site outside the hours of  
09:00 hours to 17:00 Monday to Friday , and at no times on Saturdays, Sundays or 
Bank Holidays at Jape One Business Centre, 2 Turnpike Close, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Williams who addressed the Sub-
Committee objecting to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be granted subject to conditions as 
detailed within the submitted report.

OUTLINE APPLICATION (INCLUDING ACCESS ONLY) FOR THE ERECTION OF 
167 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING, LANDSCAPING/ OPEN 
SPACE, CHILDRENS PLAY FACILITIES, ATTENUATION PLANS AND 
EXTENSION OF EXISTING CANAL BRIDGE (AND ASSOCIATED ENGINEERING 
WORKS) TO PROVIDE ACCESS VIA MANCHESTER ROAD AT TRUB FARM, 
MANCHESTER ROAD, CASTLETON NORTH, ROCHDALE
18 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 15/00312 an outline application (including access only) for the erection of 
167 dwellings with associated car parking, landscaping/ open space, children’s play 
facilities, attenuation plans and extension of existing canal bridge (and associated 
engineering works) to provide access via Manchester Road at Trub Farm, 
Manchester Road, Castleton North, Rochdale.

In introducing the report the Planning Officer advised the Sub-Committee of an 
amendment to the planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 from those detailed within the submitted report, namely the 
addition of a financial contribution towards the provision of additional primary and 
secondary education facilities at Castleton Primary School and Matthew Moss 
School.

The Sub-Committee were informed that Natural England had indicated they had no 
objections to the application.

The Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken by Members of the Sub-
Committee earlier in the day.



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Gee, an agent for the applicant, who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee would be minded to grant planning permission subject to 
conditions as detailed within the submitted report.

FULL PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 42 
RESIDENTIAL UNITS (USE CLASS C3), WITH PARKING, NEW PEDESTRIAN 
AND VEHICULAR ACCESS, HIGHWAYS WORKS (FROM 942/944 EDENFIELD 
ROAD TO WHERE ACCESS ROAD TO FORMER RAINSHORE MILL MERGES 
ON OVER TOWN LANE, AND INCLUDING ACCESS ROAD UP TO FORMER MILL 
SITE), WEIR AND DRAINAGE INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS, GROUND AND 
LANDSCAPE WORKS, BOUNDARY TREATMENTS, PUBLIC OPEN SPACE AND 
SERVICING. ON THE SITE OF FORMER RAINSHORE MILL, OVER TOWN LANE, 
ROCHDALE
19 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 15/00397 for a full planning application for the construction of 42 
residential units (Use Class C3), with parking, a new pedestrian and vehicular 
access, highways works (from 942/944 Edenfield Road to where access road to 
former Rainshore Mill merges on Over Town Lane, and including access road up to 
former Mill site), weir and drainage infrastructure works, ground and landscape 
works, boundary treatments, public open space and servicing, on the Site Of Former 
Rainshore Mill, Over Town Lane, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Dorber, a local resident, who 
addressed the Sub-Committee objecting to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee would be minded to grant planning permission.

APPLICATION TO FELL TREE 1 AND 2 LIME TREES WITHIN GROUP A1 OF 
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 092 AT 16 ROSSMERE AVENUE, ROCHDALE
20 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced an application to fell 
trees identified as 1 and 2 Lime Trees within group A1 of Tree Preservation Order 
092 at 16 Rossmere Avenue, Rochdale.

The application sought permission to fell both these trees on the grounds that they 
are located adjacent to the house and thus created excessive shading, particularly 
for the upstairs rooms when the trees are in full leaf. The submitted application also 
stated that the trees have low amenity value and cover the area with moss and green 
waste because the branches came very close to the house.

DECIDED – That the felling of trees identified as 1 and 2 Lime Trees within 
group A1 of Tree Preservation Order 092 at 16 Rossmere Avenue, Rochdale; be 
approved.

PLANNING APPEALS
21 DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 4th August 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Brosnan (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil 
Ahmed, Duckworth, Linden, Rashid, Winkler (substitute for Councillor James 
Gartside) and Zaheer (substitute for Councillor Sheerin).

OFFICERS: R. Coley, J. Nanson and L. Houghton (Economy and Environment 
Services) and P. Thompson (Customers and Corporate Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillors Daalat Ali, Farnell and Sullivan; 21 members 
of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor James Gartside, Councillor Sheerin and 
Councillor Wazir.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
22 There were no declarations of interests.

EXTENSION TO BUILDING AND ALTERATION TO CAR PARK - NORDEN ROAD, 
ROCHDALE
23 The Director of Economy and Environment Services introduced a report which 
detailed an application (number 15/00326/FUL) for a proposed two storey side 
extension to Unit 2b (Dental Surgery) and a single storey side extension to Unit 8A 
(Wine Bar) and alterations to the existing car park and access, at Bamford Village 
Precinct, Norden Road, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ms. K. Flett, who addressed Members 
on behalf of the objectors to the application.

The Sub-Committee noted that the applicants were not represented at the meeting.

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of Councillor Sullivan, a Bamford 
Ward Member, who addressed Members in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That (1) the application for the two storey side extension to the 
Dental Surgery (Unit 2b) be approved;

(2) the application for the Wine Bar (Unit 8a) be refused on the grounds 
of intensification of use at the application site, if planning permission were to  
be granted.

APPLICATION TO VARY CONDITIONS - THE KLONDIKE, CHICHESTER 
STREET, ROCHDALE
24 The Director of Economy and Environment Services introduced a report which 
detailed an application (number 15/00451/VRCON) for ab variation of condition 3, of 
planning application 98/D35033 (relating to permitted hours of trade and business) to 
allow 24 hour operation on the area that was hatched in red on the submitted plan, 
appended to the report at The Klondike, Chichester Street, Rochdale. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mrs. B. Smith who addressed Members 
on behalf of the objectors to the application.



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr. Percy, who addressed the Sub-
Committee on behalf of the applicants.

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of Councillor Daalat Ali, a Kingsway 
Ward Member, who addressed Members in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be granted for a limited period of 12 
months, subject to revised conditions to be issued by the Chief Planning 
Officer, and any breaches of the conditions are to be reported to this Sub-
Committee at the earliest opportunity.

CHANGE OF USE FROM OFFICES TO NON RESIDENTIAL EDUCATION 
FACILITY - 585 OLDHAM ROAD, ROCHDALE
25 The Director of Economy and Environment Services reported that planning 
application 15/00517/FUL had been withdrawn from the agenda.

CHANGE OF USE FROM INDUSTRIAL UNIT TO CANINE HYDROTHERAPHY 
AND GROOMING CENTRE - QUEENSWAY, ROCHDALE
26 The Director of Economy and Environment Services presented a report which 
detailed an application (number 15/00676/FUL) for the change of use from an 
industrial unit to a canine hydrotherapy centre and grooming room, including a 
reception area, wet room and changing, at Unit 2, Harp Industrial Estate, 
Queensway, Rochdale. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant, Mr. Shammi, who 
addressed Members in support of the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be approved, subject to the conditions 
detailed within the submitted report.

WORKS TO TREES - OULDER HILL HOUSE, OULDER HILL DRIVE, ROCHDALE
27 The Director of Economy and Environment presented a report that sought 
approval for works to trees within Tree Preservation Order in Tree Preservation Order 
29, including the removal of the Trees that were marked A, B and C, on the plan that 
was attached to the report and the thinning of trees that were marked F and G on the 
plan at Oulder Hill House, Oulder Hill Drive, Rochdale.

DECIDED – That the application be approved.

WORKS TO TREES - 3 OULDER NOOK, OULDER HILL, ROCHDALE
28 The Director of Economy and Environment presented a report that proposed 
to lift up to 5m above ground floor level T4 (Sycamore), to fell T5 (Sycamore), to thin 
T6 (Copper Beech) by 25% and to fell T7 (Robinia), as highlighted on the plan 
attached to the Committee’s report, within Tree Preservation Order 064, at 3 Oulder 
Nook, Oulder Hill, Rochdale.

DECIDED – That the application be approved.

WORKS TO TREES AT 1 OULDER NOOK, OULDER HILL, ROCHDALE
29 The Director of Economy and Environment presented a report that proposed 
to fell one Sycamore tree, as highlighted on the plan attached to the Committee’s 
report, within Tree Preservation Order 0064, at 1 Oulder Nook, Oulder Hill, Rochdale.

DECIDED – That the application be refused.



PLANNING APPEALS
30 DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 1 September 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Lynne Brosnan (Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
James Gartside, Linden, Rashid, Sheerin, Wazir, O'Neill and Winkler

OFFICERS:  R. Coley and J. Gilligan (Economy & Environment Services); N. 
Scanlon and M. Garraway (Customers & Corporate Services) 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Holly and 14 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Shakil Ahmed and Councillor Duckworth

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
30 There were no declarations of interest.

CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF 16 WIND TURBINES (2 IN ROCHDALE) 
WITH A MAXIMUM HEIGHT TO THE TIP OF THE BLADE OF 115 METRES 
(ABOVE GROUND LEVEL) FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD OF 25 YEARS 
TOGETHER WITH: -  THE INSTALLATION OF ASSOCIATED ANCILLARY 
INFRASTRUCTURE -  THE INSTALLATION OF AN ANEMOMETER MAST OF A 
MAXIMUM 60M HEIGHT-  RETENTION OF NECESSARY ELEMENTS OF 
ANCILLARY INFRASTRUCTURE ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXISTING SCOUT 
MOOR WIND FARM-  A SCHEME OF MOORLAND RESTORATION AND 
MANAGEMENT (MRMP)-  ERECTION OF BOUNDARY TREATMENTS AND PEN 
IN ASSOCIATION WITH CREATION OF A PERMISSIVE BRIDLEWAY- 
FORMATION OF PATHS FOR PEDESTRIANS AND HORSE-RIDERS TO LINK 
WITH ACCESS TRACKS AND EXISTING RIGHTS OF WAY ON LAND AT SCOUT 
MOOR AND NEAR EDENFIELD, ROSSENDALE
31 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced planning application 
15/00395 for the construction and operation of 16 wind turbines (2 in Rochdale) with 
a maximum height to the tip of the blade of 115 metres (above ground level) for a 
temporary period of 25 years together with: -  The installation of associated ancillary 
infrastructure -  The installation of an anemometer mast of a maximum 60m height-  
Retention of necessary elements of ancillary infrastructure associated with the 
existing Scout Moor Wind Farm-  A scheme of moorland restoration and 
management (MRMP)-  Erection of boundary treatments and pen in association with 
creation of a permissive bridleway- Formation of paths for pedestrians and horse-
riders to link with access tracks and existing Rights of Way on land At Scout Moor 
And Near Edenfield, Rossendale.

The Director of Economy advised that the description of development referred to 
proposals in both Rochdale and Rossendale, as the planning application had been 
submitted jointly to both authorities. The development within Rochdale comprised two 
wind turbines, access track spurs and the MRMP and Members were further advised 
that they should limit their consideration to that part of the development in Rochdale, 
other than in respect of cumulative effects.

Representation had been received from Manchester Airport Group indicating they 
had agreed to a suitable condition to deliver a radar mitigation option that would 
address the anticipated and operational impacts of the development on Manchester 
Airport and aircraft operations.



Further to the submitted report, the Director advised of various matters arising since 
preparation of the submitted report.  The Council had been advised that the Ministry 
of Defence (MOD) had submitted a letter of objection as current mitigation was 
currently unacceptable in relation to the two wind turbines in Rochdale could be in 
the line of site of the radar at Warton. 

Three further representations had been received from Communities against Scout 
Moor Wind Farm. 

Having considered the above matters, and in addressing a number of typographical 
issues, the Director advised the following proposed amendments and/or replacement 
conditions - 

 Condition 2 – replace ‘9th July 2015’ with ‘June 2015’ as although the Further 
Environmental Information was received on 9th July the document is dated 
June 2015 (for precision);

 Condition 6 – as Condition 2;
 Condition 9 – replace ‘Environment Statement’ with ‘Environmental 

Statement’ (for precision)
 Condition 14 – replace ‘the two turbines’ both times it appears with ‘turbines 

T15 and T16’ (for precision).
Reason: To ensure the protection of airspace and to accord with policies G/EM/12 
and EM/14 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and policy contained within 
the National Planning Policy Framework”.

 Condition 32 – replace with:-
“In the event that a complaint alleging shadow flicker effects from the development is 
made to the Local Planning Authority by the owner or occupier of any Dwelling which 
a) is attributable to the development hereby approved and b) which, in the opinion of 
the Local Planning Authority, requires mitigation then a mitigation strategy shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their approval in writing. The mitigation 
strategy shall be submitted within 14 days of a request in writing from the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be implemented within 14 days of the Local Planning 
Authority confirming its approval of the measures in writing. 
‘Dwelling’ is defined for the purposes of this condition as a building which lawfully 
exists or had planning permission at the date of this permission within Use Class C3 
or C4 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)) 
and which lies within 1.5km of any turbine.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Morrell and Mr Newcombe who 
addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the objectors.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr S Snowden, Peel Energy, who 
addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicant.

The Sub-Committee considered the comments of Councillor Holly who addressed the 
Sub-Committee in respect of the application.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee is minded to grant planning permission subject to the 
conditions within the submitted report. 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT - 259 DWELLINGS TOGETHER WITH GARAGES, 
PARKING, PROVISION OF OPEN SPACE AND ASSOCIATED ROADS AND 
SEWERS ON THE SITE OF FORMER HILL TOP PRIMARY SCHOOL, HILL TOP 
DRIVE, ROCHDALE



32 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced planning application 
15/00826 for a residential development of 259 dwellings together with garages, 
parking, provision of open space and associated roads and sewers on the site of 
Former Hill Top Primary School, Hill Top Drive, Rochdale.

In introducing the application the Planning Officer referred to a site visit undertaken 
by Members of the Sub-Committee earlier in the day.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Rudd of Hill Top Drive who 
addressed the Sub-Committee in relation to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr Gleeson who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

DECIDED – That the Planning and Licensing Committee be advised that this 
Sub-Committee would be minded to grant planning permission subject to 
confirmation from the School Service of the impact upon local Schools and 
confirmation of any required Section 106 contribution, the outstanding issues 
relating to noise and layout being satisfactorily addressed, and subject to the 
conditions as detailed within the submitted report.

ERECTION OF 10 SEMI DETACHED DWELLINGS ON LAND BETWEEN 395 & 
421 EDENFIELD ROAD, ROCHDALE
33 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 14/00604 for the erection of 10 semi-detached dwellings on land between 
395 & 421 Edenfield Road, Rochdale.

The Planning Officer read out a submitted statement from the applicant.

DECIDED – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions as 
detailed within the submitted report and an additional condition for the 
provision of bin collection from the car parking area.

TWO STOREY SIDE AND SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 121 BUERSIL 
AVENUE ROCHDALE
34 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 15/00878 for a two storey side and single storey rear extension at 121 
Buersil Avenue, Rochdale.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of the applicant who addressed the Sub-
Committee in relation to the application.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Ward Councillor Daalat Ali who 
addressed the Sub-Committee supporting the application.

DECIDED – That planning permission be refused for reasons as detailed within 
the submitted report.  

APPLICATION TO FELL TREE 3 SYCAMORE TREE ALSO TREE 4 (SYCAMORE) 
CROWN TO BE LIFTED COVERED BY TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO 012 
AT 4 THE HARRIDGE, ROCHDALE
35 The Director of Economy and Environment introduced submitted planning 
application 15/00855, an application to fell Tree 3 Sycamore tree also Tree 4 
(sycamore) crown to be lifted covered by Tree Preservation Order TPO 012 at 4 The 
Harridge, Rochdale.



DECIDED – That permission to fell Tree 3 Sycamore tree also Tree 4 (sycamore) 
crown to be lifted covered by Tree Preservation Order TPO 012 at 4 The 
Harridge, Rochdale, be approved.

PLANNING APPEALS
36 DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted.



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 29th September 2015

PRESENT:  Councillor Brosnan (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil 
Ahmed, Duckworth, Sheerin, Wazir.  Councillor Winkler substitute Member for 
Councillor James Gartside and Councillor Zaheer substitute Member for Councillor 
Rashid. 

OFFICERS:  D Ripa (Economy Directorate), J Gillighan (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate) and S Shahid (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Ward Members; Councillors Daalat Ali, Farnell, Jane 
Gartside, Hornby and Sullivan; Mark Robinson (Economy Directorate) and 
approximately 26 members of the public. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor James Gartside, Councillor Linden and 
Councillor Rashid

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
37 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Winkler 
declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 2, application 15/00735/HOUS 
for a proposed two storey and single storey rear extension with a balcony including, a 
front dormer, demolition of an existing porch and the erection of a replacement porch. 
He left the room during consideration of this item taking no part in the discussions or 
voting on this matter.  

OUTLINE APPLICATION (INCLUDING ACCESS AND LAYOUT) FOR THE 
ERECTION OF 4 DWELLINGS ON A PLOT OF LAND BOUNDED BY LOCKHART 
STREET, KINGS ROAD, ROYDS STREET AND SANDFIELD ROAD, ROCHDALE.
38 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00619/OUT an outline planning application (including access and layout) for the 
erection of four dwellings on a plot of land bounded by Lockhart Street, King’s Road, 
Royds Street and Sandfield Road, Rochdale. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mrs T Warne objecting to the 
application. 

The applicant or their representative were not in attendance. 

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of a Kingsway Ward Member, 
Councillor Daalat Ali, who addressed the Sub-Committee objecting to the application. 

DECIDED- That planning permission be refused on the grounds of highway 
safety concerns due to the insufficient width of the vehicular access. 

PROPOSED TWO STOREY AND SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION WITH THE 
ERECTION OF A REPLACEMENT PORCH AT 26 LINNET HILL, ROCHDALE.
39 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00735/HOUS for a two storey and single storey rear extension with balcony 
including, a front dormer, the demolition of an existing porch and the erection of a 
replacement porch at 26 Linnet Hill, Rochdale, 



The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mrs M Woods objecting to the 
application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr G Hitchin, who addressed the 
Committee on behalf of the applicant. 

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of a Bamford Ward Member, 
Councillor Sullivan who addressed the Sub-Committee objecting the application. 

DECIDED- That planning permission be approved subject to the conditions 
detailed in the submitted report. 

RE-CLADDING AND RE-ROOFING OF EXISTING UNIT AT WOOLWORTHS PLC, 
ROYLE BARN ROAD, ROCHDALE.
40 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00777/FUL for the re-cladding and re-roofing of an existing unit including 
increases in the roof height at Woolworths PLC, Royle Barn Road, Rochdale. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr T Brogan objecting to the 
application. 

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr S Pemberton who addressed the 
Sub-Committee in support of the application.

The Sub-Committee also considered the views of a Castleton Ward Member, 
Councillor Hornby, who addressed the Sub-Committee objecting to the application. 

Members of the Committee discussed the concerns raised in relation to a number of 
unauthorised portable cabins and containers stored on the site and requested that 
enforcement action be commenced to ensure that these are removed. 

DECIDED-That planning permission be approved subject to the conditions 
detailed in the submitted report in addition to the following conditions:-  

1) That any external lighting affixed to the building be approved prior to 
installation in consultation with the Council to limit the impact on the 
environment and local residents. 

2) That no plant or machinery be installed on the building without the 
prior written approval of the Council to limit the impact on the environment and 
local residents. 

In accordance with Council procedure rule 16.5, Councillor Sheerin requested that 
his vote against the decision be recorded. 

TREE WORKS BAMFORD HALL LODGE, 341 BURY AND ROCHDALE OLD 
ROAD, HEYWOOD.
41 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00918/WTTPO  seeking consent to fell three Beech tree's, three Sycamore trees 
and crown lift and thin one Sycamore tree within group W23 of Tree Preservation 
Order No. 010 (Heywood MB No.1) at Bamford Hall Lodge, 341 Bury and Rochdale 
Old Road, Heywood, OL10 4BB.

There were no objectors in attendance. 

The applicant or their representatives were not in attendance. 



DECIDED- That authorisation for the felling of three Beech tree's, three 
Sycamore trees , including the crown lift and thinning of one Sycamore tree 
(within group W23 of Tree Preservation Order No. 010, Heywood MB No.1) at 
Bamford Hall Lodge, 341 Bury and Rochdale Old Road, Heywood, OL10 4BB be 
approved subject to   the conditions detailed within the report.  

APPLICATION TO FELL ONE SYCAMORE TREE SUBJECT TO TREE 
PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 026 AT 9 BROOKLANDS COURT, ROCHDALE.
42 The Director of Economy reported on submitted planning application 
15/00936/WTTPO seeking consent to fell one Sycamore tree subject to Tree 
Preservation Order No. 026 (Brooklands Court) at 9 Brooklands Court, Rochdale. 

There were no objectors in attendance at the meeting.

The Sub-Committee considered the views of Mr D Dempsey who addressed the Sub-
Committee in support of the application.

DECIDED- That authorisation to fell one Sycamore tree subject to Tree 
Preservation Order No. 026 (Brooklands Court) at 9 Brooklands Court, 
Rochdale, OL11 4EJ be approved subject to additional conditions as 
recommended by the Green Infrastructure Officer, including that replacement 
trees are planted. The reason for the decision were: the height of the tree 
extending significantly  above the ridge of the dwelling and the tree being sited 
within an elevated area of the garden; and the tree leaning towards the gable 
end of the adjacent property. 

In accordance with Council procedure rule 16.5, Chair, Councillor Brosnan requested 
that her vote against the decision be recorded. 

APPLICATION FOR THE FELLING FOR ASH TREE (T8) AND ASH TREE (G1) 
WITHIN THE TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 046 AT 21 NORWICH AVENUE, 
ROCHDALE.
43 The Director of Economy reported on planning application number 
15/01035/WTTPO seeking consent to fell one Ash Tree (T8) and one Ash Tree (G1) 
within the Tree Preservation Order 046 at 21 Norwich Avenue, Rochdale. 

There were no objectors in attendance at the meeting. 

The applicant or their representatives were in not in attendance at the meeting. 

DECIDED- That authorisation to fell one Sycamore tree subject to Tree 
Preservation Order No. 026 (Brooklands Court) at 9 Brooklands Court, 
Rochdale be approved. 

PROPOSED TREE PRESERVATION ORDER: CRIMBLE STREET, ROCHDALE
44 The Director of Economy presented a report which sought the consent of the 
Sub-Committee to make a Tree Preservation Order, in accordance with Part 4 of the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation (Tree Preservation Orders) at Crimble Street, 
Rochdale. 

Members were informed that the Oak tree was a veteran tree with considerable bio 
diversity value and makes a significant contribution to the visual amenity of Crimble 
Street   A veteran tree is defined by Natural England as a tree that is of interest 
biologically, culturally or aesthetically because of its age, size or condition. Veteran 
trees may also be of historic interest and are especially important for biological 



reasons, providing conditions suitable for a wide range of other plants and animals, 
many of which require the very special environment created in an old tree.  

The Council has received a planning application for the development of the land 
immediately adjacent to the tree which overhangs this land, which may result in root 
and canopy damage leading to the loss of the tree.

DECIDED – 1) That authorisation be granted for the making of a Tree 
Preservation Order in respect of an Oak tree on land adjacent to 1 Crimble 
Street, Rochdale. 

2) That Rochdale Planning Sub-Committee authorise the confirmation of 
the Tree Preservation Order in the event that no objections are received 
following statutory notification to take place once the Order is made. 

3) That the Planning Sub-Committee agree that in the event of 
objections being raised that the Order is brought back before the Sub-
Committee for confirmation.

PLANNING APPEALS
45 The Director of Economy reported that the following planning appeals had 
been submitted:

a. 15/00726/HH42 – 12 Stonehill Crescent
b. 15/00531/HOUS – 34 Wood Top Avenue
c. 14/01506/FUL – Land off Falinge Fold

The Director of Economy reported that the Planning Inspectorate had dismissed the 
following planning appeals:

a. 15/00518/HOUS 5 Franklin Street
b. 15/00029/REF 13 Bittern Close

DECIDED – That the planning appeals be noted. 



Subject: Submitted Planning Applications Status:  For Publication

Report to:  Rochdale Township Planning 
Committee  

Date:         27 October 2015 ^DS,DATEACTCOM.DCAPPL,21;   

Report of: Director of Economy and 
Environment

Author: See individual agenda reports

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 To provide recommendations to the Committee on planning applications or 
related consents submitted to the Council and requiring the consideration 
and/or determination of the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
approved Scheme of Delegation.

1.2 To provide information on any other planning or development related 
matters which may affect the work of the Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Recommendations in respect of individual planning applications are as 
detailed in the following papers.

3. STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The submitted applications on this agenda are to be determined in 
accordance with the provisions of relevant legislation, including the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Planning and Compensation Act 1991, 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Planning Act 2008, Localism 
Act 2011 and the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 together with any Directions and 
Regulations which support that legislation.  

3.2 Planning law requires that applications be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
Where relevant, any such material considerations will be referred to in the 
report.

ITEM NO.



    The Development Plan

3.3 All planning applications referred to in this report have been assessed 
against the relevant policies and proposals of the development plan for 
the Borough (currently the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan 
2006) and any Supplementary Planning Documents or Guidance adopted 
by the Council.  

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

3.4 In addition, in assessing the submitted planning applications, there is a 
requirement to have regard to relevant national policies as set out within 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) the policies of which are a 
material consideration.  Where relevant, the provisions of the NPPF and 
any other relevant national guidance will be referred to in the report.

4. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members and Officers 
dealing with Planning Matters.  Members and Officers are required to have 
full regard to the Code in discharging their responsibilities and duties in 
relation to planning matters on behalf of the Council.  The Code seeks to 
ensure that all decision making is governed by an open and transparent 
process and represents a standard against which the conduct of Officers 
and Member sitting on the Committee will be judged.  

4.2 A Declaration of Member Interests Register is taken prior to the 
commencement of the Committee meeting.  Advice on whether any 
Member sitting on the Committee ought to declare any interest on any 
item on the submitted agenda should be obtained from the Head of Legal 
and Democratic Services or the Head of Planning.  

4.3 The Council’s Standards Committee will monitor the operation of this Code 
of Conduct.   

5. EQUALITIES IMPACTS

5.1 The above Acts require Local Planning Authorities to consider planning 
applications on their individual merits having regard to the development 
plan and other material planning considerations.

5.2 The Equality Act 2010 protects people from discrimination on the basis of 
certain characteristics which are known as protected characteristics.  
These protected characteristics are Age, Disability, Gender Reassignment, 
Marriage or Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, Religion or 
Belief, Sex (Gender), Sexual Orientation, socio-economic status and 
Carer.

5.3 In applying the Equality Act 2010, the Council is required to consider the 
effects of its decisions on different groups protected from discrimination, 
including a duty to make reasonable adjustments.  In taking account of all 



material planning considerations, including Council policy as set out in the 
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, 
the Director (Economy and Environment) has concluded all opportunities 
to promote equality through the planning process have been taken, or 
where adjustments cannot be made, these are justified on the basis of the 
planning merits of the development proposal.  

5.4 The Rochdale and District Disabled Access Working Group may comment 
on relevant planning applications. Where comments are received, these 
will be included within the reported to Committee.  Consideration is given 
in designing access when dealing with the planning applications. Where 
applicable, any issues relating to these matters or other equal opportunity 
matters will be referred to in individual planning application reports.

6.      Human Rights Act 1998 considerations

6.1   The submitted applications need to be considered against the provisions of 
the Human Rights Act 1998.  Under Article 6, the applications (and those 
third parties, including local residents, who have made representations) 
have the right to a fair hearing and to this end the Committee must give 
full consideration to their comments.

6.2 Article 8 and Protocol 1 Article 1 confer(s) a right of respect or a person’s 
home, other land and business assets.  In taking account of all material 
considerations, including Council policy as set out in the Unitary 
Development Plan, the Director (Economy and Environment) has 
concluded that some rights conferred by these Articles on the 
applicant(s)/objectors/residents and other occupiers and owners of nearby 
land that might be affected may be interfered with but that that 
interference is in accordance with the law and justified by being in the 
public interest and on the basis of the planning merits of the development 
proposal.  He believes that any restriction on these rights posed by 
approval of the application is proportionate to the wider benefits of 
approval and that such a decision falls within the margin of discretion 
afforded to the Council under the Town and Country Planning Acts.



Background Papers

      The background papers relevant to the planning applications to be considered on 
this agenda will include:-

1.  The Planning application file and its contents which will include:

i)  The planning application form and supporting information, together with 
scaled drawings/plans and relevant statutory certificates.

ii) Letters of response from statutory and other consultees who may have 
been consulted or commented on the planning application

iii) Letters and documents received from interested parties.
iv) Notes of telephone conversations, meetings and any information received 

and of relevance to the submitted proposal
 

2. For any previous planning application referred to in the agenda report or in the 
application file, the planning application forms and the decision on that proposal

3. Such other papers (if any) received after the preparation of individual reports 
on planning applications on this agenda (to be reported verbally at the meeting).

       4. Any other guidance or procedural documents adopted by the Council and of 
relevance to the recommendation and/or determination of any submitted 
planning applications or related consents

For further information about this report, or if you wish to see any background
papers please contact: Sharon Hill, Senior Business Support Officer, in Economy and 
Environment, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone (01706) 924305 or via the online planning services at: 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning


Application Number: 15/00013/OUT    Ward: Healey      

Proposal: Outline application with all matters reserved for the erection of one dwelling

Site Address: Land East Of 4 Rudman Street Rochdale OL12 6LJ  

Applicant: 
                  Oddplots Ltd

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions

DELEGATION SCHEME

The application has been brought to Committee as 14 objections have been received and the 
recommendation is for approval.  The Committee has delegated authority to approve or 
refuse the application.  

SITE

The application relates to an almost triangular shaped section of land measuring 0.2 
hectares, adjacent to the residential dwelling at 4 Rudman Street in Rochdale. The 
application site was previously covered in relatively dense shrubbery and trees, however 



prior to submission of this application the land was cleared of the vast majority of vegetation. 
The land is situated at the top of Rudman Street and the public highway narrows significantly 
into a track where it meets the north eastern boundary of the application site. The plot itself 
slopes considerably, raising up from north to south, with the southern tip of the site being 
some 8m higher than the highway to the north. 

The application site is located within the defined urban and is predominantly surrounded by 
residential dwellings. Directly to the west is the neighbouring bungalow at 4 Rudman Street, 
whose gable elevation faces the application site. To the north is the highway of Rudman 
Street which narrows significantly into an unmade track and on the opposite side of this track 
is the bungalow at 19 Rudman Street with the front elevation of this neighbouring property 
facing south onto the proposed development site. To the south and east runs an unmade 
pedestrian track which connects Rudman Street to Wellbrow Terrace to the south, however 
this track is not defined as a public right of way. Rudman Street itself is a relatively narrow 
highway consisting of approximately ten dwellings. The dwellings on Rudman Street vary in 
design and include two bungalows, two pairs of semis, a row of three traditional terrace 
houses and a two storey detached dwelling. 

PROPOSAL

The application seeks outline planning permission, with all matters reserved, for the erection 
of one dwelling on the land adjacent to number 4 Rudman Street. 

The original submission included only a sited edged red, which under normal circumstances 
would be sufficient as the application only seeks outline permission with all matters reserved. 
However in this particular case the LPA, because of the narrow highway of Rudman Street 
and change in levels across the site, the LPA requested the applicant provide a plan 
showing where the proposed dwelling would potentially be accessed off Rudman Street and 
where within the site (including land level details) would the dwelling be potentially located. 

The applicant has provided such detail, however this is indicative only and does not tie the 
applicant to these details should this application be approved. It is simply a plan to show the 
LPA how a house could be potentially be accessed and sited on this site. 

The indicative plan shows that the proposed dwelling would be accessed off the existing 
track at the top of Rudman Street in the north western tip of the development site and at this 
point the track measures 2.8m wide. A section of this track measuring approximately 4m 
would therefore need to be resurfaced to allow vehicles to pass and gain access to the site 
however this would form part of any future application. 

With regard to the siting of the dwelling, the plan shows that the angled property would be 
set back 12-15m from the highway of Rudman Street and at this point the land is some 5m 
higher than highway level. The submission shows a two storey dwelling, relatively large in 
size, however as mentioned above these details are not being considered as part of this 
application as the proposal only seeks to establish whether the principle of erecting one 
house (of any design and size etc…) would be acceptable on this site. The layout, 
appearance, scale, access and landscaping details would all be considered under a 
reserved matters application should this outline permission be granted. 



RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 

The Department for Communities and Local Government published the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 2012.  The NPPF sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.  

National Planning Policy Guidance

The government published its National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014. This is 
intended to complement the National Planning Policy Framework and to provide a single 
resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all 
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be 
made to the NPPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where 
appropriate.

Unitary Development Plan (UDP):

G/D/1 Defined Urban Area

G/H/1 Housing

H/3 Residential Developments Outside Allocated Areas 

H/6 Provision of Recreational Open Space in New Housing Development

G/A/1 Accessibility

A/8 New Development – Capacity of the Highway Network

A/9 New Development – Access for General Traffic

A/10 New Development – Provision of Parking

G/BE/1 Design Quality

BE/2 Design Criteria for New Development

BE/8 Landscaping in New Development

G/BE/9 Conservation and the Built Environment

BE/10 Development Affecting Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments 

G/NE/1 Nature Conservation

NE/3 Biodiversity and Development

NE/4 Protected Species

G/NE/5 Landscape and Woodlands



NE/8 Development Affecting Trees, Woodlands & Hedgerows

G/EM/1 Environmental Protection and Pollution Control 

EM/3 Noise and New Development

EM/4 Contamination

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

None

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Highways & Engineering:- No highway objection 

The access road of Rudman Street is narrow and the situation is made worse by the existing 
residents parking on the highway, however the access is considered acceptable for one 
additional dwelling.  

The proposal will prevent existing residents from parking at the end of the road, where the 
road becomes a track, causing them an inconvenience. However, the existing residents do 
not have a right to park upon the highway in such a way.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit:- The Ecological Survey Report and Assessment has 
been carried out by a  suitably qualified ecologist and is to appropriate and proportionate 
standards. I would accept the findings of the report that the site is not currently designated 
for its nature conservation value and is considered to have only low potential to support any 
specially protected or priority species, except for nesting birds. The site cannot therefore be 
considered to have substantive nature conservation value and I would have no overall in 
principle objection to the application on ecological grounds.

But the site does form part of a recognisable ‘green corridor’ of semi-natural vegetation of 
some local value for wildlife. The plans show a large dwelling encroaching on semi-natural 
vegetation, and particularly on the hedge/vegetation forming the western boundary of the 
application site. I would recommend that, should permission be granted to the scheme and 
in the interests of conserving local wildlife value, a Landscaping Plan for the site should be 
required to be prepared and once agreed, implemented.

Additionally no further vegetation clearance should be carried out during the optimum period 
for bird nesting (March to July inclusive). All nesting birds their eggs and young are specially 
protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

Greater Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service:- The application is not 
accompanied by an archaeological desk based assessment and the Historic 
Environmental Record (HER) has not been consulted by the applicant. However, the 
HER contains no specific record for this site. 

A comment has been submitted to Rochdale MBC by a member of the public in which two 
heritage concerns have been raised. Firstly, it is stated that the field for which the 
development is proposed was “in the past…associated with the Zion Chapel which stood on 
the site 4 Rudman Street”. The concern is raised that the field may have seen internments, 



full burials or cremations. The HER has access to historic mapping which shows that a 
Primitive Methodist chapel – Zion Chapel – was constructed in the latter half of the 
nineteenth century and stood where 4 Rudman Street now stands. The chapel remained in 
use until 1959 and the building standing until well into the twentieth century. Following its 
closure as a place of worship the building remained in use as a warehouse. None of the 
historic maps suggest that the proposed development area was used for burials. Rochdale 
archives include some documentation from the chapel, including a Baptismal Register 
covering the period 1937-51. However, there is no documentation to suggest that the field 
was used for burials. It is also perhaps worth noting that the proposed development area 
was sub-divided into several smaller fields well into the 1950s. Indeed, the southern end of 
the proposed development area was used for allotment gardens in the 1960s.

On balance I feel it is most unlikely the field was officially licensed or used for  burials. It is 
always possible that individuals may have deposited cremations in the area, but the mapping 
suggests that the land remained in use as agricultural fields well into the lifetime of the 
chapel.

Secondly, a concern is raised regarding the status and future of the two tracks that run along 
the northern and eastern boundaries of the proposed development area. Concern is 
expressed that the lanes are of historical importance, and that they should be protected in 
any planning consent. The trackway on the eastern boundary is said to be part of a routeway 
now largely lost that ran from a crossing of the River Spodden. It is difficult to substantiate 
the original length of the path. The lane section abutting the proposed development area is 
however clearly shown as a footpath on the 1848-51 mapping. That said, there is nothing in 
the application proposals that suggests this lane will be affected by the development. 
Rudman Street was apparently part of a mid-eighteenth century turnpike. The northern 
boundary of the proposed development area abuts a short section of the turnpike that was 
never adopted and has remained as an unsurfaced lane. In the Design and Access 
statement the planning application proposes that part of the unadopted and unsurfaced 
portion of this lane will need to be subject to “a limited amount of road surfacing” in order to 
gain access to the site. A lot depends upon how limited the road surfacing will be. There is 
certainly some heritage interest and amenity value in the existence and survival of an 
unsurfaced section of turnpike road. 

In summary, GMAAS is of the opinion that it is most unlikely the proposed development area 
contains burial or cremations, and does not see any threat to the footpath on its eastern 
boundary. GMAAS would wish to see the extent of any road surfacing proposed for the 
former turnpike kept to a minimum (not beyond the junction with Sweet Briar Lane), thereby 
allowing the vast majority of the unadopted lane to remain unsurfaced. This will only be 
established once the detailed application is being prepared for submission at which time it 
will be possible to see how much of the lane is proposed for surfacing. 

On this basis, GMAAS does not see any reasonable basis for placing any archaeological 
requirements upon the developer in respect of the present application.

United Utilities:- No objection subject to condition that site shall be drained on separate 
system for foul and surface water.

Contaminated Land Officer:- Site Investigation and Assessment required by condition



REPRESENTATIONS

Letters of notification were sent to surrounding properties and a notice positioned close to 
the site. In response to the publicity 14 objections have been received. The objections can 
be viewed in full on the Council’s Website, however the points raised and Officer’s 
responses are summarised below:

1. Whilst there does not appear to have been a building on the site, the adjacent site of 
4 Rudman Street was occupied by the Zion Chapel. Burials may have therefore 
taken place on the application site. Additionally, two historic trackways bound the 
application site and could be affected by the proposal. Will the archaeological value 
of the site and tracks be investigated?

Response: The points raised were referred to the Greater Manchester 
Archaeological Advisory Service and their response is included above in the 
“Consultee” section of this report.

2. There is no vehicle access to the application site, the road ends and becomes a 
path before it reaches the site. A number of cars have got stuck at the top of the 
road as a result of this.

Response: The Highway Officer has raised no objection to the access and is of the 
opinion the access point is wide enough to serve the proposed dwelling.

3.  Six of the ten residential properties on Rudman Street do not have off-street parking 
provision and therefore have to park on the highway.  Rudman Street is a narrow 
lane and has to be accessed by smaller bin wagons. These wagons cannot turn and 
have to reverse back down the road. Parking, loading and turning are all issues in 
this area. Residents have had walls and pillars damaged by vehicles navigating this 
narrow lane. 

Response: Rudman Street is narrow and the situation is made worse by residents 
parking on the highway. However the primary purpose of the highway is to provide 
vehicle access, not parking for residents, and thus residents should only be parking 
on the highway if they can provide sufficient access for vehicles to safely pass. If as a 
result of residents parking on the street the highway is not accessible then these cars 
are parking illegally. It is therefore unreasonable to refuse an application on the 
grounds that residents parking on the street prevents access to the development site, 
as residents should not be parking on the highway if this action restricts access. 

4. Customers of the nearby pub and shop also park on the street.

Response: Again, vehicle uses should not park in such a way that restricts access, 
this is illegal. 

5. The land owner has no regard to trees as they were all removed prior to the 
application being submitted. These trees were home to a multitude of wildlife. 

Response: The land owner has removed a significant amount of vegetation from the 
site, however the site is/was not protected in anyway and thus the owner was entitled 
to remove this vegetation. 



6. The proposed dwelling will overlook the bungalows at number 4 and 19 Rudman 
Street.

Response: This issue is considered in the analysis section of this report.

7. The proposed dwelling would result in a loss of views.

Response: Residents do not have a right to a view across land that is not in their 
ownership. 

8. Delivery/construction vehicles would not be able to access the site.

Response: The LPA agree that the access is tight. The applicant is of the opinion that 
construction vehicles can access the site otherwise they would not have submitted 
the application and the Highway Officer has raised no such objection. 

9. The proposed access to the dwelling would dangerously conflict with pedestrians 
and cyclists on the access track. 

Response: The dwelling opposite (No. 19) has an access point onto Rudman Street, 
as does the neighbouring house at number 4. The proposed access would have no 
materially greater impact on the access track than these dwellings.

10. An objector works shifts and needs to sleep during the day. The proposed 
development would disturb this resident/objector during construction work. 

Response: Unfortunately the personal circumstances of this objector is not a reason 
to refuse development. If development was refused on these grounds no construction 
would be able to take place at any site located near to someone that works shifts.

11. The green land currently collects a lot of rainwater and building a dwelling could 
potentially result in this water running down the road. 

Response: United Utilities have raised no objection to the application on surface 
water flooding grounds. Additionally, the LPA would require a landscaping scheme to 
be submitted with any future application to show the extent of soft landscaping to be 
retained on this site.

12. The proposal is contrary to the Rochdale Township Green Infrastructure Action Plan. 
The plot forms part of a band of trees and quality green space identified in the Plan 
as running from Cronkeyshaw Common, Falinge Road through to Spodden Valley, 
Healey Dell and National Cycle Netwrok Route 92.

Response: The Rochdale Green Infrastructure Action Plan does not form part of the 
core planning policy framework and is an aspirational document for green 
infrastructure within the township. The application site is not specifically mentioned in 
the document which generally looks at larger areas and wider development 
proposals and access, rather than individual development sites. The document 
specifically states “The detailed management of individual sites is outside the remit of 
this action plan”. 



The site is not within any defined green space corridor or protected areas, and is 
privately owned so there is no public access onto this land.

13. The proposal is contrary the UDP and NPPF which require development to create 
safe and suitable access for all people. 

Response: As mentioned above it is considered that the proposed access to the site 
is acceptable. 

14. An application at Falinge Fold (14/00913/FUL) was refused by Members in 2015 for 
the above two mentioned reasons (12 & 13).

Response: The above mentioned application at Falinge Fold was not refused 
because of the Green Infrastructure Action Plan – this document is not mentioned in 
the reasons for refusal. However, one of the reasons was that the access was 
considered to be too narrow. The current application however only seeks permission 
for one dwelling, at the top of the road and therefore it is extremely unlikely that 
vehicles will be passing at the proposed access point.  

15. One of the 12 National Policy Framework core planning principles is that planning 
contributes to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing 
pollution. The estimate loss in terms of carbon capture by the felling of the mature 
trees on the plot is approximately 60kg of CO2 per annum (source: Forestry 
Commission). Furthermore the planning system should contribute to and enhance 
the natural and local environment by: protecting and enhancing valued landscapes.

Response: The trees and vegetation on this site have been removed from site and 
this was the right of the land owner in the same way it is any land owners right to 
remove a tree that is not protected by a TPO or within a conservation area. The trees 
and site were not protected in anyway and a suitable ecology survey has been 
submitted and the findings of this document supported by the Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit.  

16. Approval of this application would set a precedent for the loss of greenspace in the 
Shawclough and Heights Lane area.  

Response: The Council does not currently have a five year housing land supply and 
thus the release of greenfield sites, within the defined urban area are currently 
considered acceptable in line with a number of recent appeal decisions. 

ANALYSIS

Principle of development

The site is within the Defined Urban Area and relates to a predominantly cleared area of land 
which previously contained relatively mature trees, shrubbery and vegetation. ‘Previously 
developed land’ is defined in Annex 2 of the NPPF as:

 “Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage 
of the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the whole of the 
curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface infrastructure. 



This excludes: land that is or has been occupied by agricultural or forestry 
buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal 
by landfill purposes where provision for restoration has been made through 
development control procedures; land in built-up areas such as private residential 
gardens, parks, recreation grounds and allotments; and land that was previously-
developed but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface 
structure have blended into the landscape in the process of time.”

Criterion (a) of UDP policy H/3 states that proposals for housing on sites not allocated for 
housing or any other use in the plan will be permitted where the site is located on previously 
developed land. It is not considered that this site comprises ‘previously developed land’ in 
accordance with the definition in the NPPF and is therefore considered to be ‘greenfield’. 
However, Policy H/3 also states that the release of greenfield sites for housing will be 
permitted if the supply of housing land falls below five years as defined by the projected 
annualised rate (i.e. the annual target for additional new homes). The Borough cannot 
demonstrate a deliverable five year housing land supply at the current time and therefore the 
release of greenfield sites can be contemplated. 

The second bullet point to paragraph 47 of the NPPF states that, in order to “boost 
significantly the supply of housing”, local planning authorities should:

 “identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to 
provide five years’ worth of housing against their housing requirements with an 
additional buffer of 5% (moved forward from later in the plan period) to ensure 
choice and competition in the market for land. Where there has been a record of 
persistent under delivery of housing, local planning authorities should increase 
the buffer to 20% (moved forward from later in the plan period) to provide a 
realistic prospect of achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and 
competition in the market for land.”

Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states:-

‘Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be 
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of 
deliverable sites’.

At present, the Council is unable to demonstrate a deliverable five year supply of housing 
land with either a 5% or 20% buffer and there is a shortfall in the number of houses being 
delivered against the Council’s likely housing target in the Core Strategy, further casting 
doubts on deliverability. The deficiencies in the Council’s housing land supply have been 
highlighted in a number of appeal decisions from the Planning Inspectorate. Policies relating 
to the supply of land for housing (i.e. Policy H/3) are therefore considered to be out of date.

As such Paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged which states that where development plan is 
absent, silent or relevant planning policies are out of date, planning permission should be 
granted unless:-

‘the adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits’.



Whilst the proposal would result in residential development on a greenfield site it is 
considered that the site is located within a sustainable location within the urban area close to 
public transport links and a Local Centre. Having regard to a number of recent appeal 
decisions and the government’s desire to provide a more flexible supply of housing land (as 
indicated in the NPPF), it is considered that it would not be sustainable to refuse this 
application on the grounds that the principle of residential development on this greenfield site 
is unacceptable. Other impacts of the development are considered in the remainder of this 
report.

Impact upon neighbouring uses

The application seeks outline permission with all matters reserved, and thus the proposal 
seeks to obtain whether the principle of residential development is acceptable on this site. 
Therefore the proposal does not seek permission for a particular house type (bungalow or 
two storey) or for the actual positioning of the house within the site, these will be considered 
on any future reserved matters application when submitted. 

Notwithstanding the above, in order for outline permission to be granted the LPA must be 
sure that “a dwelling” can be positioned somewhere in the site without having a negative 
impact upon the amenity of neighbouring residents. As such the LPA requested the applicant 
submit an indicative plan showing where a house could potentially be positioned within the 
site and asked ground levels be provided because of the significant changes across the site.  

The applicant has submitted a plan showing the dwelling sited almost in line with the 
neighbouring bungalow at number 4, and this would provide a separation distance on 
between 21 and 26 metres from the front elevation of the bungalow opposite at number 19 
Rudman Street. The Council’s SPG for residential development requires a separation 
distance of 21m between principle elevations, however where there is a significant level 
change, as in this case, the SPG requires greater separation distances (an additional 5m per 
3m in level difference). The submitted plans show that there would be a 5m difference in 
levels between the existing dwelling at number 19 and the proposed dwelling, and thus a 
minimum separation distance of 26m would be required. As mentioned above the indicative 
plans shows the distance between 21 – 26m (because of the angled style of the house) and 
thus parts of the dwelling proposed would not fully comply with the SPG. 

However, it must be remembered that the proposal is not considered the house shown on 
the plans, and an acceptable separation distance could be achieved by altering the design of 
the house shown, either by altering the angled design, moving the dwelling slightly further 
back within the site or reducing the property to single storey only. 

In terms of the neighbouring dwelling at 4 Rudman Street, the gable elevation of this 
property would be sited 13m from the proposed dwelling shown on the plans and provided 
that the side elevation of the proposed elevation did not contain any windows in the side 
elevation facing number 4 Rudman Street (again an issue for the reserved matters 
application) the relationship would be acceptable. 

In summary, the dwelling shown on the submitted plans would require modification in terms 
of either its size, in particular its height/scale, or its positioning within the site to fully comply 
with Council policies in relation to the neighbouring properties. However it is considered that 
a revised dwelling could be sited within this site and comply with Council policies but this is 



for further consideration on any reserved matters application. What the LPA cannot however 
guarantee to the applicant is that the size and positioning of the house is as large as they 
would want or require to make the scheme viable because of the significant change in land 
levels across the site, but again this outline application has all matters reserved and simply 
seeks to establish whether a house could be built on this site. 

Highways:

UDP policy A/8 states that new development will be permitted provided that the additional 
traffic generated will not be detrimental to the safe and efficient operation of the Highway 
Network, both adjacent to and further away from the site. Specifically, proposals should not:

a) Have an adverse impact on the safety of any road users;

b) Have an adverse impact on accessibility for pedestrians, including people with 
restricted mobility, cyclists or users of public transport in the immediate vicinity of the 
development;

c) Substantially increase congestion;

d) Divert traffic on to less suitable roads; or

e) Cause an unacceptable environmental impact on residential properties passed by 
traffic associated with the development whilst accessing the principal road network.

UDP policy A/9 stipulates that development proposals will be required to facilitate safe and 
convenient access for general traffic, which includes cars, motorcycles and commercial 
vehicles. Relative to the scale, type and location of development, proposals should ensure 
that:

a) Roads, junctions and access points to/from premises are safe, convenient and 
suitable for the volume and characteristics of traffic that will be required to use them.

UDP policy A/10 relates to parking provision and refers to the Council’s Schedule of Parking 
Standards which identifies maximum standards for car parking provision and minimum 
standards for cycle and motorcycle parking. The maximum standard for car parking provision 
for single bed houses is stipulated as 1.25 spaces per dwelling.

In addition, UDP policy H/3 (e) states that proposals should be “compatible with surrounding 
uses, including highways, both in terms of [their] impact upon those uses and the impact of 
surrounding uses upon the amenity of future residents, and BE/2 (g) requires proposals to 
facilitate safe and convenient access and circulation.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused 
where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

Again access is a reserved matter and therefore what is shown on the plan might not 
necessarily be the access point on the reserved matter application. The submitted plans 
show that the site would be accessed off the existing track at the top of Rudman Street. At 
the point where access will be provided into the development site the existing track 
measures 2.8m wide and a section (approximately 4m) would need to be resurfaced to 
provide vehicle access into the site. 



It is noted that the access track from which access to the site will be gained is not included 
within the submitted site edged red, and thus any reserved matters application could not 
contain an amended site edged red to include this track. Any future application that does 
include the track within the site edged red would therefore require a full planning application, 
rather than a reserved matters application.     

The Highway Officer is satisfied that the access point is sufficient for one dwelling and given 
that this is the top of the road it is unlikely that any vehicles, other than those gaining access 
to the proposed dwellings and houses at 4 and 19 Rudman Street, would be using this part 
of the highway. 

In terms of Rudman Street itself, this is a narrow road which currently serves 10 houses and 
it is not considered that one additional dwelling would result in a significant increase in 
vehicle movements. A number of objectors have commented that the road is narrow and 
manoeuvring is difficult when cars are parked on the highway. The application dwelling 
would be provided with off-street parking and thus should not increase the demand for on-
street parking in this area, however as mentioned in the Representation section of the report 
the purpose of the highway (Rudman Street) is to provide access, and not to provide car 
parking for residents that do not have off-street parking provision. If the residents parking on 
the street are preventing access, they are parking illegally and as such it is the parked 
vehicles that are the problem and not the vehicles wanting to drive on the highway and 
access their properties further up Rudman Street, and this includes the proposed 
development site.    

In summary, the proposed access point is considered to be acceptable, the addition of one 
dwelling is not likely to result in a significant increase in vehicle movements that the existing 
highway network could not support and there is sufficient space within the development site 
for the provision of acceptable levels of off-street parking. The proposed development would 
therefore have no detrimental impact on road safety in compliance with the requirements of 
UDP policies H/3, BE/2, A/8, A/9 and A/10. The residual impacts would certainly not be 
‘severe’ as required for a proposal to be resisted when considering an application against 
the NPPF.

Trees and ecology

The application site previously consisted of relatively mature trees and vegetation, however 
the site was cleared prior to submission of this application and there are no trees on this site 
that are worthy of protection. The LPA have no control over the removal of this vegetation 
and must assess the application as submitted, with the site cleared of vegetation. 

In terms of ecology, Unitary Development Plan Policy NE/4 does not permit proposals which 
would affect National or European protected species unless it can be demonstrated that:

a) There is no adverse impact on the species concerned;

b) Loss of, or damage to habitats supporting such species is minimal and, where 
required, adequate alternative habitats are provided to sustain at least the current 
levels of the population of the species; and 



c) Where a proposal affects a European Protected Species, it fulfils the appropriate 
criteria for development as set out in National European legislation. 

Paragraph 007 of the Natural Environment section of the NPPG confirms that under Section 
40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006, all public authorities should 
have regard to the purpose of conserving biodiversity. Paragraph 016 of this section also 
states that “An ecological survey will be necessary in advance of a planning application if the 
type and location of development are such that the impact on biodiversity may be significant 
and existing information is lacking or inadequate.” Additionally Paragraph 118 of the NPPF 
states that LPAs should aim not only to conserve, but also enhance biodiversity. 

The submitted application includes an ecology survey of the site and this report states that 
the site has low potential to support protected species, except for nesting birds. Greater 
Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) have raised no objection to the content of this report or 
the construction of a dwelling, subject to condition requiring details of a landscaping scheme 
to be submitted to, and approved by, the LPA in order to conserve local wildlife, such a 
condition would form part of the reserved matters application. A condition is also recommend 
by GMEU to prevent any further vegetation clearance during the optimum period for bird 
nesting (March to July inclusive) as all nesting birds, their eggs, and young are specially 
protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

Archaeological interest

An objector has raised a concern over an archaeological interest in this site. UDP Policy 
BE/10 (Development Affecting Archaeological Sites and Ancient Monuments) requires 
developers to take full account of the presence of known sites of archaeological importance 
and their setting in the proposals. The LPA have no record of any archaeological interest in 
this site, however as a result of the objection received the LPA consulted with Greater 
Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service (GMAAS) on this application. GMAAS is 
of the opinion that it is most unlikely the proposed development area contains burial or 
cremations, as referred to by the objector, and does not see any threat to the footpath on the 
eastern boundary of the site which would be unaffected by the proposal. However, GMAAS 
would wish to see the extent of any road surfacing proposed for the former turnpike kept to a 
minimum (not beyond the junction with Sweet Briar Lane), thereby allowing the vast majority 
of the unadopted lane to remain unsurfaced. The submitted application shows that the 
access will be located significantly to the west of Sweet Briar Lane, meaning that the 
resurfacing would not extend that far, however this will only be fully established once the 
reserved matters application is submitted, and at which time it will be possible to determine 
exactly how much of the lane is proposed for re-surfacing.  

With the above in mind, GMAAS does not see any reasonable basis for placing any 
archaeological requirements upon the developer in respect of the present application in 
accordance with UDP policy BE/10.  

Contamination:

The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer is satisfied that any issues which may exist on the 
site can be adequately identified and addressed by the imposition of a condition requiring the 
submission and approval of a contamination report and implementation of any appropriate 
remediation measures required. It is therefore considered that the requirements of UDP 



policy EM/4 and guidance contained within the NPPF can be satisfactorily addressed 
through condition.

Recreational Open Space:

Policy H/6 of the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan requires all developments, 
regardless of scale, to make a contribution to recreational open space provision in the 
Borough. Nevertheless, in November 2014, the Government made a policy announcement 
that tariff style planning obligations should not be applied to developments of 10 dwellings or 
fewer or with a floorspace of less than 1000sqm. The Council’s recreational open space 
policy is a tariff style planning obligation and as such was caught by this change in policy. 

As a consequence Members of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee determined at their 
meeting of 22nd December 2014 that the change to government policy should be 
implemented with immediate effect and therefore no contribution to recreational open space 
is required from this development.

Summary and Planning Balance

The proposed residential development of this plot would contribute to the delivery of national 
and local housing targets and would not harm the character, quality or amenity value of the 
land and its surroundings. The submitted application has demonstrated that a dwelling could 
be located on this site and share an acceptable relationship with surrounding properties, 
however this dwelling may not be the dwelling shown on the indicative plans submitted with 
the application. It is also considered that the site can be accessed without having a 
detrimental impact on the safe and efficient operation of the highway network, either 
adjacent to or further away from the site. Measures can also be put in place in order to 
ensure that the development poses no unacceptable risk in terms of contamination. It is 
therefore clear that the adverse impacts of the development would be limited with a clear 
benefit of bringing an unused site forward for housing. It is therefore considered that the 
adverse impacts of the development would not significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, the presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF is engaged and 
the application is recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant subject to following conditions:-

 1 Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than three years 
of the date of this decision and the development must be begun not later than 
whichever is the later of the following dates: (a) The expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission; or (b) The expiration of two years from the final approval 
of the reserved matters, or in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved.



Reason: To comply with the requirements of section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

 2 The approval of the Local Planning Authority shall be sought in respect of the 
following matters before the development is commenced:- appearance; access; 
landscaping; layout; and scale.

Reason: The application is granted in outline only under the provisions of Article 4 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2010 
(as amended) and details of the matters referred to in the condition were submitted 
for indicative purposes only.

 3 This permission relates to the following plans:- 

Site Location Plan (1:1250)

and the development shall be carried out in complete accordance with these 
drawings hereby approved.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development in accordance with the policies contained within the adopted Rochdale 
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

 4 No development shall take place until an investigation and risk assessment (in 
addition to any assessment provided with the planning application) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment shall investigate the nature and extent of any contamination on the site 
(whether or not it originates on the site). The assessment shall be undertaken by 
competent persons and a written report of the findings submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any development takes place. The 
submitted report shall include:

i)  a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination

ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:

                •  human health,

     • property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland, and service lines and pipes,

                • adjoining land,

                • groundwaters and surface waters,

                • ecological systems,

                • archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

iii) where unacceptable risks are identified, an appraisal of remedial options and 
proposal of the preferred option(s) to form a remediation strategy for the site.



The development shall thereafter be carried out in full accordance with the duly 
approved remediation strategy and a verification report submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any of the building(s) hereby approved 
are first occupied. 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment and to ensure the safe 
development of the site in the interests of the amenity of future occupiers in 
accordance with Unitary Development Plan policies EM/4, EM/8 and BE/2, and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

 5 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or 
engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take 
place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and 
between 09:00 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or 
Bank Holidays.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties 
in accordance with Policies H/3 and BE/2 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan.

 6 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, no development shall take 
place until a scheme for the disposal of foul and surface waters for the entire site has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. For the 
avoidance of doubt, surface water must drain separate from the foul and no surface 
water will be permitted to discharge directly or indirectly into existing foul or combined 
sewerage systems. Any surface water draining to the public surface water sewer 
must be restricted to a maximum pass forward flow of 5 l/s. The development shall 
be completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To secure a satisfactory system of drainage and to prevent pollution of the 
water environment in accordance with Policies EM/7 and EM/8 of the Council's 
Unitary Development Plan.

 7 The reserved matters application(s) shall include full details of proposed finished floor 
levels and external ground levels. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the duly approved details prior to first occupation.  

Reason:  In order to ensure a satisfactory relationship between the new dwellings 
and between the development and surrounding buildings in the interests of 
residential and visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Unitary 
Development Plan Policies H/3 and BE/2.

 8 No development shall take place until a plan indicating the positions, design, 
materials and type of boundary treatments for each dwelling has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The boundary treatments 
shall be fully erected as approved prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby 
permitted or in accordance with a timetable that has first been agreed in writing with 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and retained as such thereafter.



Reason: In the interests of visual amenities of the vicinity, in accordance with Policy 
BE/2 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan.

 9 No clearance of trees and shrubs in preparation for or during the course of 
development shall take place during the bird nesting season (March - July inclusive) 
unless an ecological survey has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority which establishes that no part of the site is utilised for bird 
nesting. Should the survey reveal the presence of any nesting species, then no 
clearance of trees and shrubs shall take place during the above period until a 
methodology for protecting nest sites during the course of the development has first 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nest site 
protection shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the duly approved 
methodology.

Reason: In order to prevent any habitat disturbance to nesting birds in accordance 
with Unitary Development Plan Policies NE/3 and NE/4 and the provisions of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

Report Author Robert Major

________________________________________________



Application Number: 15/00832/FUL    Ward: Healey      

Proposal: First floor side and rear extensions and formation of 4 new windows openings on 
south west elevation

Site Address: Healey Surgery  Whitworth Road Rochdale Rochdale OL12 0SN

Applicant: Mrs Debbie Yildrim
                  Healey Surgery

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions

DELEGATION SCHEME

The application has been brought to Committee as five objections have been received and 
the recommendation is for approval.  The Committee has delegated authority to approve or 
refuse the application.  

SITE

The application relates to the site of Healey Surgery (Doctors) which is accessed off 
Whitworth Road in Rochdale. The site currently consists of a relatively large single storey 



building which operates as the surgery and adjacent to this is a smaller detached building 
used as a pharmacy. To south of these buildings is the access road off Whitworth Road and 
this leads to the car parking area which provides 33 car parking spaces for the surgery. The 
remainder of the site is made up of informal soft landscaping areas surrounding the buildings 
and car parking area.

The brick built surgery comprises a single storey pitched roof building with two forward 
projecting sections facing east towards the car park. These forward projecting sections also 
have pitched roof designs with the ridgeline running perpendicular to the ridge of the main 
section of the surgery. 

The application site is elevated above Whitworth Road, and continues to slope upwards 
towards the rear of the residential properties on Brookdale to the north. The application site 
is located within a primarily residential area, although to the north west is the site of Quarry 
Mill. 

PROPOSAL

The application seeks permission to construct a first floor extension above the northern 
section of the surgery building. The extension would increase the floorspace of the surgery 
by 140 sq metres and provide additional storage and office/conference facilities. 

In terms of the design the first floor extension would simply continue the pitched roof design 
of the building by increasing the height of both the eaves and ridge of this section of the 
building by 2.8m. The first floor extension would contain four windows in the front (east) 
elevation, two windows in the rear elevation and two windows in the side (north) elevation. 
These windows would match the existing openings in terms of proportion and would be 
aligned with the openings below. Four roof lights would also be fitted. 

The application also includes the insertion of five additional windows at ground floor level 
within the existing building and all of these windows would be located towards the southern 
end of the existing building.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 

The Department for Communities and Local Government published the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) on 27 March 2012.  The NPPF sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.  

National Planning Policy Guidance

The government published its National Planning Practice Guidance on 6 March 2014. This is 
intended to complement the National Planning Policy Framework and to provide a single 
resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all 
previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be 
made to the NPPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where 
appropriate.



Unitary Development Plan (UDP):

G/D/1 Defined Urban Area

G/CF/1 Community Facilities and Public Services 

CF/2 General Criteria for the Development of Local Community and Health 
Facilities  

G/A/1 Accessibility

A/8 New Development – Capacity of the Highway Network

A/9 New Development – Access for General Traffic

A/10 New Development – Provision of Parking 

G/EM/1 Environmental Protection and Pollution Control

EM/3 Noise and New Development

G/BE/1 Design Quality

BE/2 Design Criteria for New Development

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

09/D52527 - Single Storey Extension and Alterations to Existing Car Park – granted subject 
to conditions

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Highways & Engineering:- No highway objection 

No additional parking would be provided as part of this application, and whilst this is not ideal 
the positive impact of additional facilities at the surgery outweighs the potential for a negative 
impact upon current dedicated parking arrangements.

Patients of the surgery will visit for a limited amount of time, existing formalised on street 
parking facilities opposite the access point of the surgery on Whitworth Road can also be 
utilised. Healey Surgery is located on the A671-Whitworth Road which is a major bus route 
offering sustainable transport methods alternative to car travel. In addition to this it is likely 
that some local residents will access the development on foot.

REPRESENTATIONS

Letters of notification were sent to surrounding properties and a notice positioned close to 
the site. In response to the publicity five objections have been received nearby residents on 
Brookdale. The objections can be viewed in full on the Council’s Website, however the 
points raised and Officer’s responses are summarised below:

1) The proposed extension will block views from the rear gardens of the houses at 16, 
18, 20 and 22 Brookdale.



Response: The residents on Brookdale have no right to a view over land they do not 
own. 

2) The proposed extension will block sunlight to the above mentioned properties and 
gardens, and overlook neighbouring properties, resulting in a loss of privacy.

Response: The surgery building is currently situated on land approximately 4m lower 
than the garden levels of the houses on Brookdale, with an even greater level 
change between the surgery and the actual dwellings which are even higher. As such 
the level of sunlight blocked by the proposed extension would be minimal in both the 
garden areas and houses. 

Notwithstanding this the LPA have recommended separation distances for assessing 
the impact of a development on an existing property in terms of overlooking, loss of 
outlook and overshadowing. Council policies recommend a separation distance of 
14m between rear elevations of the houses on Brookdale and the proposed 
extension. In this case, at the nearest point the separation distance between the 
original rear elevation of the closest dwelling (18 Brookdale) and the surgery would 
be 22m, which is considerably greater the 14m required by Council Policies, and as 
mentioned above the surgery is set approximately 4m lower which reduces the 
impact significantly. With this in mind the separation distance between proposed 
extension and the houses on Brookdale is considered to be acceptable and not a 
sustainable reason to refuse this application. 

3) The proposed building works will result in noise and disturbance for residents. When 
the surgery was previously extended the green land close to residential properties 
was used to store machinery and equipment. 

Response: It would be unreasonably to refuse the application on the grounds that 
building work will disturb nearby residents as this can be argued at any site or 
development, meaning no building work could ever take place. A condition has 
however been attached to ensure that the building works take place during 
reasonable hours.

4) The surgery was extended three years ago, why does it need to be extended again 
and how many more extension will be required. 

Response: There is clearly an increasing demand which requires the surgery to 
extend. If future applications to extend are submitted they would be assessed on 
their acceptability in line with Council Policies.

5) If the extension is approved and built the objectors will seek compensation from the 
surgery for loss of house value to their properties.

Response: Loss of property value is not a planning consideration and any legal case 
between the residents and the surgery would be a private matter. 

6) To build a first floor extension just to house records and a needless conference room 
is an unnecessary costly luxury which will create ill feeling with surrounding 
neighbours. A computer can be used to house records.



Response: It is not for the Council (or an objector) to judge whether an extension is 
necessary or not. The application must be assessed on its planning merits alone. 
Nonetheless, it is considered unlikely that the surgery would go to the expense of an 
extension unless it was necessary.

7) The logistics of working to build on top of a functioning building are complex and 
dangerous, unless the surgery is shut down during building works which will cause 
disturbance for residents. 

Response: First floor extensions are extremely common and whether the surgery 
closes or not during construction works is irrelevant to the determination of this 
application. 

8) The surgery and car park are already noisy and increasing number of patients will 
only increase this problem.

Response: It is not considered that a Doctor’s surgery is a particular noisy use for 
which planning permission should be refused and the addition of a first floor 
extension will not result in a significant increase in noise that would unduly impact on 
neighbouring residents in accordance with UDP policy EM/3. 

9) The surgery should be extended at ground floor. 

Response: Again it is not for the Council to question why the applicant wishes to 
extend in the way they do. It is for the Council to assess the planning merits of the 
application.

ANALYSIS

Principle of development

The Doctor’s Surgery is a community facility and thus UDP Policy CF/2 (General Criteria for 
the Development of Local Community and Health Facilities) is relevant. This Policy promotes 
the improvement of local community and health facilities, provided that:

1. The facility is accessible to the community it is intended to serve, and where 
practicable, within District or Local Centres;

2. The proposal will have no unacceptable impact on the amenity of surrounding 
uses, particularly residential, by reason of visual appearance, scale, noise or 
other nuisance; and

3. The surrounding road network is capable of accommodating any additional 
vehicular traffic likely to be generated by the proposal without damage to the local 
environment or road safety.

The application seeks to extend an existing and established public facility which is 
accessible to the community given its location just off a busy main road (Whitworth Road). In 
terms of the impact upon neighbouring uses and the highway capacity, these are considered 
later in this report. 



Impact upon neighbouring uses

One of the 12 principles of the NPPF is to ensure that planning “always seek to secure high 
quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land 
and buildings” and this is broadly in line with criterion (i) of UDP Policy BE/2 which seeks to 
ensure all development demonstrates good design by “making adequate provision for 
natural light within and between buildings”. 

The application seeks to extend at first floor level, above the northern section of the surgery. 
As discussed elsewhere in this report, the existing surgery building is set approximately 4m 
lower than the neighbouring houses on Brookdale, and thus the impact of the first floor 
extension is considered to be limited. The Council’s Guidelines and Standards for 
Residential Development recommends a separation distance of 14m between new builds 
and existing residential dwellings, and whilst it is obviously recognised that this extension 
does not relate to a residential dwelling (or extension), the impact and relationship is the very 
similar and thus this guidance gives a good indication of the impact the development would 
have on the neighbouring residential properties. At the nearest point the proposed extension 
to the surgery would be 22m from the dwellings on Brookdale, and thus the proposal 
comfortably complies with the above mentioned recommendation which suggest 14m is 
sufficient. Additionally, as mentioned above, the impact is also reduced significantly by the 
neighbouring houses being situated on higher land. It would therefore be considered 
unreasonable to refuse the application on the grounds of impact upon neighbouring 
residents through overshadowing, loss of daylight and outlook. 

In terms overlooking, the same Council standards recommend a distance of 10.5m from a 
new first floor window to the rear boundary of a neighbouring residential property, and the 
proposed development would achieve this distance. In addition, as mentioned above the 
application building is positioned 4m lower than the neighbouring houses and thus the first 
floor windows within the development would be akin to ground floor windows in terms of the 
level of overlooking they would provide into neighbouring land/uses.       

With this in mind the separation distance between proposed extension and the houses on 
Brookdale is considered to be acceptable and the proposed development accords with UDP 
Policy BE/2 and the NPPF in terms of the relationship with neighbouring uses and in 
particular residential.   

Design and appearance

Criteria (a), (g) and (h) of UDP policy BE/2 require proposals to demonstrate good design by:

 Ensuring that they are compatible with or improve their surroundings by virtue of 
their scale, density, height, massing, layout, materials, architectural style and 
detail and means of enclosure;

 Providing for safe and convenient access and circulation;

 Minimising opportunities for crime against people or property.

Paragraph 58 of the NPPF encourages good design by stipulating that planning policies and 
decisions should aim to ensure that developments:



 will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development;

 establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to create 
attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit; 

 respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local 
surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation; 

 create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear 
of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion.

The existing building is wholly single storey, and the application seeks to extend above the 
northern section of the building to create a first floor area. The proposed first floor extension 
would be simply designed and continue the pitched roof design of existing building, and 
would be constructed using matching materials and would replicate existing window 
proportions within the surgery .  The existing building is a relatively new build, and has no 
particular architectural merit, and thus the extension would be in keeping with the style and 
design of the existing surgery.  

With regard to the street scene, the surgery is positioned significantly higher than, and set 
back from, the highway of Whitworth Road and is substantially screened by the properties 
either side at 456 Whitworth Road and Quarry Mill, which are positioned closer to the higher. 
As such the existing building is only seen for a short section in between these two buildings. 
Additionally, the extension would be sited at the northern end of the building (and site), 
which is positioned over 50m from the highway of Whitworth Road and with the level 
changes across the site it is not considered that the extension would be prominently viewed 
from public vantage points, except from within the grounds of the surgery itself.   

In view of the above, it is considered that the design and appearance of the proposed 
extension is acceptable in accordance with UDP policy BE/2 and the NPPF. 

Highways

UDP policy A/8 states that new development will be permitted provided that the additional 
traffic generated will not be detrimental to the safe and efficient operation of the Highway 
Network, both adjacent to and further away from the site. Specifically, proposals should not:

 Have an adverse impact on the safety of any road users;

 Have an adverse impact on accessibility for pedestrians, including people with 
restricted mobility, cyclists or users of public transport in the immediate vicinity of 
the development;

 Substantially increase congestion;

 Divert traffic on to less suitable roads; or



 Cause an unacceptable environmental impact on residential properties passed by 
traffic associated with the development whilst accessing the principal road 
network.

UDP policy A/9 stipulates that development proposals will be required to facilitate safe and 
convenient access for general traffic, which includes cars, motorcycles and commercial 
vehicles. Relative to the scale, type and location of development, proposals should ensure 
that:

b) Roads, junctions and access points to/from premises are safe, convenient and 
suitable for the volume and characteristics of traffic that will be required to use them.

UDP policy A/10 relates to parking provision and refers to the Council’s Schedule of Parking 
Standards which identifies maximum standards for car parking provision and minimum 
standards for cycle and motorcycle parking. 

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused 
where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

The application proposes to extend an existing surgery building at first floor level by 
approximately 140 sq metres, however the application does not include the provision of 
additional parking spaces at the surgery. At present the surgery has 33 designated car 
parking spaces, and the Highway Officer has commented that there is also on-street parking 
available on Whitworth Road. Access to the surgery would not be altered in any way by this 
application. 

The Highway Officer has also mentioned that the surgery is located on the A671 – Whitworth 
Road which is a major bus route offering sustainable transport methods other than the by 
car, and that local residents are likely to attend the surgery on foot. As such the Highway 
Officer is satisfied that the existing level of parking provision is acceptable for the surgery 
and the proposed extension.

With regard to access and the surrounding highway network, as mentioned above the site is 
located just off the A671 which is a busy and sustainable highway which can easily support 
the additional vehicle movements associated with the proposed development. The existing 
access point and service road off Whitworth Road would not be altered be altered by the 
proposal and as such the existing and surrounding highway network is considered to be 
suitable in accordance with UDP policies A/8, A/9 and A/10. The residual impacts would 
certainly not be ‘severe’ as required for a proposal to be resisted when considering an 
application against the NPPF.

Conclusion

The application seeks to extend the existing surgery by constructing at first floor extension 
above the northern section of the existing building. The extension is relatively modest in size 
and for the reasons outlined above, mainly its distance from neighbouring residential 
properties and the change in levels between the application site and these neighbouring 
properties, it is considered that the proposed extension shares an acceptable relationship 
with surrounding properties and uses. The extension is simply designed, to reflect the 
existing building, and given its location within the site, would not be highly prominent or have 



a negative impact upon the character of the street scene. The existing access and parking 
provision are considered to be acceptable, given the sites sustainable location on an A-road 
and major bus route with good links to Rochdale Town Centre and beyond. 

In view of the above, the proposal complies with UDP Policies CF/2, A/8, A/9, A/10 and 
BE/2, as well as the national guidance within the NPPF. Where an application complies with 
adopted development plan policies then, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the NPPF, it 
should be ‘approved without delay’. The application is therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION

Grant subject to the following conditions:-

 1 The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

 2 This permission relates to the following plans:- 

3380 06

3380 02 C

and the development shall be carried out in complete accordance with these 
drawings hereby approved.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development in accordance with the policies contained within the adopted Rochdale 
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

 3 Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application, no above ground 
development shall take place until samples or full details of materials to be used 
externally on the building have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the 
materials. Only the materials so approved shall be used, in accordance with any 
terms of such approval.

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy BE/2 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan.

 4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no building or 
engineering operations within the site or deliveries to and from the site shall take 
place other than between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and 
between 09:00 hours and 14:00 hours on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays or 
Bank Holidays.



Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties 
in accordance with Policies H/3 and BE/2 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan.

Report Author Robert Major

 _____________________________________________



Application Number: 15/01048/WTTPO    Ward: Bamford      

Proposal: Application to fell one sycamore trees within group G1 of Tree Preservation Order 
No. 113

Site Address: 2 Meadowcroft Lane Rochdale Rochdale OL11 5HN 

Applicant: Mr Ivan Duggan
                  

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions

DELEGATION SCHEME

This application seeks consent to fell one Sycamore tree within Group G1 of Tree 
Preservation Order (“TPO”) No. 113. Members may grant unconditional or conditional 
consent or may refuse the application for consent.



DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

The application relates to one mature Sycamore tree located in a small, dense, raised area 
of mature trees to the south of the entrance driveway to Beaumonds, accessed in turn from 
Meadowcroft Lane. The tree is located in the north east corner of the group and lies 
approximately 13m from the flats at Beaumonds to the south east. 

The applicant proposes to fell the Sycamore tree for safety reasons. As they have outlined 
within the application, this is due to the crown of the tree rising above the other nearby trees 
and is therefore considered to have outgrown its location and suffers from a significant lean 
towards Beaumonds. 

With regard to planting replacement, the applicant intends to clear the scrub beneath the 
existing canopy and replace with a wild garden, with the potential to plant a replacement tree 
within the next planting season, however, it is noted that there is significant cover afforded 
by the remaining trees in the vicinity.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to complement the 
NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and 
streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been 
cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or other national advice in the 
Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Green Infrastructure Officer – 

No objection to the removal of the Sycamore tree, although the tree is healthy it has a 
significant lean towards the building and its location, growing on the top of the raised bed is 
of concern.

ANALYSIS

In considering applications for works to protected trees, Government advice in paragraph 90 
of the NPPG states:

“When considering an application the authority is advised to:

 assess the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the likely impact of the 
proposal on the amenity of the area;

 consider, in the light of this assessment, whether or not the proposal is justified, 
having regard to the reasons and additional information put forward in support of it;

 consider whether any loss or damage is likely to arise if consent is refused or granted 
subject to conditions;

 consider whether any requirements apply in regard to protected species;



 consider other material considerations, including development plan policies where 
relevant; and

 ensure that appropriate expertise informs its decision.”

 
In considering whether there has to be an arboricultural need for proposed works to a TPO, 
paragraph 91 of the NPPG states:

“In general terms, it follows that the higher the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the 
greater any negative impact of proposed works on amenity, the stronger the reasons needed 
before consent is granted. However, if the amenity value is lower and the impact is likely to 
be negligible, it may be appropriate to grant consent even if the authority believes there is no 
particular arboricultural need for the work.”

With regard to the above, the main considerations in respect of this application are whether 
the proposal for the felling of the tree is justified in light of the assessment of the amenity 
value of the tree and whether the reasons for works are of sufficient standing to warrant the 
granting of consent for felling.  

To assess the acceptability of the application proposal against the above considerations, 
consultation has been carried out with the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer, who has no 
objections to the proposal.   

In summary, the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer is of the opinion that the proposed 
felling of the Sycamore tree would not reduce the amenity of the Tree Preservation Order 
group and that the tree currently presents a potential risk to the safety of the occupants of 
Beaumonds, and other neighbours in close proximity, due to the visible significant lean. As 
such, the need for works is considered to outweigh the potential harm to visual amenity that 
would arise from the felling of the tree.

Any potential impact on protected species is covered by the inclusion of Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit’s standing advice for protection of protected species when carrying out works 
to trees, which would be appended to the decision notice.

The application proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with the guidance 
contained within the NPPG and noted above, and the application is recommended for 
approval. 

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT subject to standard conditions

Report Author David Allen

___________________________________________________



Application Number: 15/01073/WTTPO    Ward: Healey      

Proposal: Application to fell one Sycamore tree and one Horse Chestnut tree subject to Tree 
Preservation Order No. 005

Site Address: 2 The Spinney Thrum Hall Lane Rochdale OL12 6DA 

Applicant: Mr Steve Heathcote
                  Treelink

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions

DELEGATION SCHEME

This application seeks consent to fell one Horse Chestnut tree and one Sycamore tree within 
Tree Preservation Order (“TPO”) No. 005. Members may grant unconditional or conditional 
consent or may refuse the application for consent.



DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

The application relates to one mature Horse Chestnut and one Sycamore tree located within 
the private rear and side garden of 2 The Spinney, accessed in turn from Thrum Hall Lane. 
The Sycamore is located to the east of the house and stands on the boundary with a densely 
wooded area within the curtilage of Thrum Hall Methodist Church. The Horse Chestnut 
stands to the north of the house, approximately 4m east of the detached garage. 

The applicant proposes to fell the Sycamore tree due to the multi-stemmed nature of the tree 
and the consequential damage it is causing to a fence on the boundary. The Horse Chestnut 
is currently suffering from tree cankers – dead sections of bark on branches and the trunk – 
and is in close proximity to the outbuilding.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to complement the 
NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and 
streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been 
cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or other national advice in the 
Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Green Infrastructure Officer – 

I have no objection to the proposal to remove these two trees protected by TPO005.  The 
horse chestnut is in decline, with large cankers and significant small branches growing from 
the trunk indicating the tree is under stress and in my opinion it is unlikely to recover.   The 
sycamore tree is multi-stemmed with some included bark, which is likely to cause structural 
problems in the near future.  Unfortunately, because of the shape of the tree, there is no 
opportunity to mitigate this by pruning. 

These two trees have only limited visibility from outside The Spinney cul-de-sac so the 
amenity value of the TPO will not be significantly reduced by the loss of these trees. 

I would want to see two replacement trees planted within the garden but will liaise with the 
householder and the applicant as to the preferred species to plant.

ANALYSIS

In considering applications for works to protected trees, Government advice in paragraph 90 
of the NPPG states:

“When considering an application the authority is advised to:

 assess the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the likely impact of the 
proposal on the amenity of the area;

 consider, in the light of this assessment, whether or not the proposal is justified, 
having regard to the reasons and additional information put forward in support of it;



 consider whether any loss or damage is likely to arise if consent is refused or granted 
subject to conditions;

 consider whether any requirements apply in regard to protected species;

 consider other material considerations, including development plan policies where 
relevant; and

 ensure that appropriate expertise informs its decision.”

 
In considering whether there has to be an arboricultural need for proposed works to a TPO, 
paragraph 91 of the NPPG states:

“In general terms, it follows that the higher the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the 
greater any negative impact of proposed works on amenity, the stronger the reasons needed 
before consent is granted. However, if the amenity value is lower and the impact is likely to 
be negligible, it may be appropriate to grant consent even if the authority believes there is no 
particular arboricultural need for the work.”

With regard to the above, the main considerations in respect of this application are whether 
the proposal for the felling of the tree is justified in light of the assessment of the amenity 
value of the tree and whether the reasons for works are of sufficient standing to warrant the 
granting of consent for felling.  

To assess the acceptability of the application proposal against the above considerations, 
consultation has been carried out with the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer, who has no 
objections to the proposal.   

In summary, the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer is of the opinion that the proposed 
felling of the Sycamore tree would not reduce the amenity of the Tree Preservation Order 
group and that the tree is multi-stemmed and causing damage to an adjacent fence that is 
not resolvable by pruning. As such, the need for works is considered to outweigh the 
potential harm to visual amenity that would arise from the felling of the tree.

The proposed felling of the Horse Chestnut is considered acceptable as the tree is suffering 
from large cankers and patches of small branches growing on the lower part of the main 
trunk, indicating that the tree is under stress. Again, the visibility of the tree from nearby 
highway is minimal and the need for the works to a tree which is unlikely to recover 
outweighs the potential harm to the visual amenity of the Tree Preservation Order. 

Any potential impact on protected species is covered by the inclusion of Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit’s standing advice for protection of protected species when carrying out works 
to trees, which would be appended to the decision notice.

The application proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with the guidance 
contained within the NPPG and noted above, and the application is recommended for 
approval. 



RECOMMENDATION

GRANT subject to standard conditions and the following additional conditions:

 1 For the avoidance of doubt, this permission relates to the individual trees as marked 
on the following drawings :-

- Plan TPO005, A2 - as submitted with the application

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure protection of the remaining 
protected trees under TPO no. 005

 2 Within the first planting season following the felling of the Sycamore and Horse 
Chestnut trees hereby approved, two replacement trees of a species and location 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted 
within the immediate vicinity of the felled trees. If either of the replacement trees are 
removed, die, become severely damaged or seriously diseased within three years of 
planting, they shall be replaced by (a) tree(s) of similar size and species.

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenity of the area.

Report Author David Allen

____________________________________________________



Application Number: 15/01096/WTTPO    Ward: Castleton      

Proposal: Application for felling of Sycamore tree within Group A2 Tree Preservation Order 
TPO 088

Site Address: 3 The Woods Rochdale OL11 3NT  

Applicant: Mr Darryl Smith
                  

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions



DELEGATION SCHEME

This application seeks consent to fell one Sycamore tree. This tree is subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order (“TPO”). Members may grant unconditional or conditional consent or 
may refuse the application for consent. 

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

The application relates to a protected Sycamore tree that is located in the rear garden of No. 
3 The Woods. The property is a detached dwelling. Several protected trees exist within the 
rear garden, which are part of Group A2 of Tree Preservation Order 088.

The application proposes the fell of the Sycamore tree that is within Group A2 of TPO 088. 
The applicant has advised that the felling is required as the tree is in a poor condition and 
has a lean on the main stem, because it is being crowded out by the larger sycamore trees 
which grow over it. They state that the garden is congested by trees of a better example, and 
that this tree offers no amenity value, believing that replanting would not be suitable.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

National Guidance

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to complement the 
NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and 
streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been 
cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or other national advice in the 
Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

Online National Planning Practice Guidance – Tree Preservation Orders and trees in 
conservation areas 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Green Infrastructure Development Officer – 

I visited this site on 22 July 2015.  The small garden is very congested with large trees and 
the middle sycamore identified in this application is being supressed by the other trees and 
is in a poor condition. Its removal would not materially affect the visual amenity of TPO088.  I 
do not object to its removal.

ANALYSIS

In considering the application Government advice in the Online National Planning Practice 
Guidance requires the LPA to:  

 assess the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the likely impact of the 
proposal on the amenity of the area;

 consider, in the light of this assessment, whether or not the proposal is justified, 
having regard to the reasons and additional information put forward in support of it;

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/tree-preservation-orders/tree-preservation-orders-general/#paragraph_008


 consider whether any loss or damage is likely to arise if consent is refused or granted 
subject to conditions

 consider whether any requirements apply in regard to protected species;

 consider other material considerations, including development plan policies where 
relevant; and

 ensure that appropriate expertise informs its decision.

In considering whether there has to be an arboricultural need for proposed works to a TPO, 
paragraph 91 of the NPPG states:

“In general terms, it follows that the higher the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the 
greater any negative impact of proposed works on amenity, the stronger the reasons needed 
before consent is granted. However, if the amenity value is lower and the impact is likely to 
be negligible, it may be appropriate to grant consent even if the authority believes there is no 
particular arboricultural need for the work.”

With regard to the above, the main considerations in respect of this application are whether 
the proposal for the felling of the tree is justified in light of the assessment of the amenity 
value of the tree and whether the reasons for works are of sufficient standing to warrant the 
granting of consent for felling.  

To assess the acceptability of the application consultations have been carried out with the 
Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer and through these consultations it has been 
established that there is no objection to the felling of the Sycamore tree. The small garden is 
very congested with large trees, and the tree identified within this application is being 
supressed by the other trees, and is in a poor condition. Its removal would not materially 
affect the visual amenity of the area. For the reasons above there are no objections to the 
felling of the sycamore tree. No other material considerations, including development plan 
policies, would warrant a different view being reached.

Any potential impact on protected species is covered by the inclusion of Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit’s standing advice for protection of protected species when carrying out works 
to trees, which would be appended to the decision notice.

Appropriate conditions are required to ensure that the works to the trees are carried out to a 
satisfactory standard, but in light of the above there are no objections to the application and 
the recommendation is to grant consent.   
The application proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with the guidance 
contained within the NPPG and noted above, and the application is recommended for 
approval. 

RECOMMENDATION

Grant subject to standard conditions

Report Author Ben Sandover

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/tree-preservation-orders/compensating-for-loss-or-damage/#paragraph_112


Application Number: 15/01114/WTTPO    Ward: Bamford      

Proposal: Application to fell one sycamore tree subjec to Tree Preservation Order No. 167

Site Address: 75 Clay Lane Rochdale OL11 5RH  

Applicant: Dr Jagat Mazumder
                  

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions

DELEGATION SCHEME

This application seeks consent to fell one Sycamore tree (T14) within Tree Preservation 
Order (“TPO”) No. 167. Members may grant unconditional or conditional consent or may 
refuse the application for consent.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND PROPOSAL

The application relates to one mature Sycamore tree in the rear garden of 75 Clay Lane. The 
tree is located on the southern border of the property and by virtue of a lean to the tree, the 
lower part of the trunk lies in extremely close proximity to a side extension approved under 
planning permission 91/D26433 at 51 Norford Way.

The applicant proposes to fell the Sycamore tree for safety reasons. As they have outlined 
within the application, this is due to the proximity of the main body of the tree to the house at 



51 Norford Way, as confirmed through site visits undertaken by the case officer and the 
Council’s Green Infrastructure officer.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

National Guidance

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to complement the 
NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst rationalising and 
streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and advice notes have been 
cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or other national advice in the 
Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Green Infrastructure Officer – 

No objections to the proposal. Although the sycamore tree, T14, is healthy it is growing less 
than 2m from the corner of the rear extension of 51 Norford Way, and leaning significantly 
towards it.  

ANALYSIS

In considering applications for works to protected trees, Government advice in paragraph 90 
of the NPPG states:

“When considering an application the authority is advised to:

 assess the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the likely impact of the 
proposal on the amenity of the area;

 consider, in the light of this assessment, whether or not the proposal is justified, 
having regard to the reasons and additional information put forward in support of it;

 consider whether any loss or damage is likely to arise if consent is refused or granted 
subject to conditions;

 consider whether any requirements apply in regard to protected species;

 consider other material considerations, including development plan policies where 
relevant; and

 ensure that appropriate expertise informs its decision.”

 
In considering whether there has to be an arboricultural need for proposed works to a TPO, 
paragraph 91 of the NPPG states:

“In general terms, it follows that the higher the amenity value of the tree or woodland and the 
greater any negative impact of proposed works on amenity, the stronger the reasons needed 
before consent is granted. However, if the amenity value is lower and the impact is likely to 
be negligible, it may be appropriate to grant consent even if the authority believes there is no 
particular arboricultural need for the work.”



With regard to the above, the main considerations in respect of this application are whether 
the proposal for the felling of the tree is justified in light of the assessment of the amenity 
value of the tree and whether the reasons for works are of sufficient standing to warrant the 
granting of consent for felling.  

To assess the acceptability of the application proposal against the above considerations, 
consultation has been carried out with the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer, who has no 
objections to the proposal.   

In summary, the Council’s Green Infrastructure Officer is of the opinion that the proposed 
felling of the Sycamore tree would not reduce the amenity of the Tree Preservation Order 
group and that the tree currently presents a potential risk to the dwelling at 51 Norford Way, 
due to the visible significant lean and the proximity of the trunk to the eaves of the extension. 
As such, the need for works is considered to outweigh the potential harm to visual amenity 
that would arise from the felling of the tree.

Any potential impact on protected species is covered by the inclusion of Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit’s standing advice for protection of protected species when carrying out works 
to trees, which would be appended to the decision notice.

The application proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with the guidance 
contained within the NPPG and noted above, and the application is recommended for 
approval. 

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT subject to standard conditions

Report Author David Allen

______________________________________________________


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 04/08/2015 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 01/09/2015 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 29/09/2015 Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee
	Minutes


	3 Submitted Planning Applications

